
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 3 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE:  June 4, 2025 
TIME: 9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

PAGE:  AGENDA ITEMS 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting 
is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and 
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant 
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board 
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. 

3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes. We encourage all community 
members to engage with public comments to the Board of Commissioners.  However, out of 
respect for our audience and a general sense of decorum please refrain from vulgar, 
threatening or inappropriate language.)

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM May 28, 2025

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

7. FALLS CITY RESOURCE CENTER LOC AWARD & FCO UPDATE – AJ Foscoli, Amy Houghtaling, & 

Brent DeMoe

8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins

CONSENT CALENDAR 

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-72, Service Contract
(Austin McGuigan, Community Development Director)

b) Polk County Contract No. 25-73, Service Contract
(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 

c) Polk County Contract No. 25-74, Providence Health Plan 

(Rosana Warren, Public Health) 

d) Polk County Contract No. 25-75, Iris Telehealth Medical Group, PA 

(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

e) Polk County Contract No. 25-76, Northwest Human Services 

(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

f) Polk County Contract No. 25-77, Employment Agreement 
(Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer) 

g) Polk County Contract No. 25-78, Employment Agreement 
(Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer) 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 3 

h) Polk County Contract No. 25-79, Employment Agreement 
(Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer) 

i) Polk County Order No. 25-08, Hall Road Vacation 

(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

    THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 

  ADJOURNMENT 



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

    POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

 

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 

 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES May 28, 2025  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:04 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Gordon were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
  None. 
 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
     ALL VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF May 21, 2025 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF May 21, 2025. 

 
     ALL VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
     ALL VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 

 
 
  



May 28, 2025 
Page 2 

 

  

7. GENERAL LIABILITY/PROPERTY INSURANCE FY2025-2026 
Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer, recommended that the Board purchase liability and 
property insurance for FY 2025-2026. Mr. Hansen provided a brief background 
information for the insurance that the County uses and talked about the cost. Mr. Hansen 
stated there is about a $60k increase from last year and ex explained why that has done 
up. 
 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 

SECONDED, PURCHASE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE FOR 
FY2025-2026. 

      
     ALL VOTED YES. 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 

 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-68, Service Contract 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

b) Polk County Contract No. 25-69, Service Contract 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

c) Polk County Contract No. 25-70, Marion County 
Health Department 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

d) Polk County Contract No. 25-71, Employment 
Agreement 
Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

At 9:05 a.m. County Counsel announced that the meeting was recessed to Executive 
Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) To conduct deliberations with persons 
designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations. (e) To conduct 
deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property 
transactions. 

The Executive Session ended at 9:49 a.m. and Commissioner Pope adjourned the 
meeting. 

 
  



May 28, 2025 
Page 3 

 

  

 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: June 4, 2025 



Fa S v
Resource
Center

ttt C

971-399-3121

2OO Parry ST

Falls City Or 97344

Monday thru Friday
Bamto5pm
Closed 12 pm to 1 pm for lunch everyday

A
A
A

aaaaa
aoaaa
aaaaa
aaaaa
aaaaa



Grand Opening: September 23,2024

4I

fr

tL

b

The Falls City Resource Center includes a shared lobby, office space, a famity
meeting room, 2 exam rooms, and a conference room to host a variety of
community events and meetings.



Heatth & Wettness Providers

o Polk County Behavioral Health
o Outpatient Services
o Health Resource Network
o Developmental Disabilities
o Age Cafe & Circle of Friends

o l,rllc
o Salem Health
o Gentle Dental
o Medical Teams International

A
A
A



A
 
A

Other On-Site Providers

o 0regon Department of Human Services
o Bambinos
o Polk County Family & Community

0utreach
o Resource Connectors
o Homeless Prevention

o Community Action Agency
o Energy Assistance Program
o H0ME Youth Services



Speciat Events & Community Support

o Community Garden Project
o Happy Dance Host Site
o Veteran's Day BBQ Host Site
o Mid-VaIIey Parenting

Pumpkin Painting
o Community Clean Up Event

Host Site

o AARP Tax Preparation
o PoIk Community Development

Corporation Homeowner
Repair Program Presentation

o Thoughts & Gifts Ornament
Making



Sheds and Ptanter Boxes
Thank you Amity High School



A
A
A

1-500 Client interactions since opening
o September: 25
o October: 86
o November.1,43
o December: 92
o January: 179
o February: 1-53

o March: 245
o April:279
o May: 301

90o/o of a[[ interactions are with Fatts City
residents

On average, 32 students come in each
month to receive a snack after school

Between 6 and l-0 older adults attend the
Circle of Friends group every week

aaaaa
oaoaa
aaaaa
aaaaa
aaaaa

a

7



Success

The Resource Center assisted an elderly person on a
fixed income who needed to travelto Salem on a
regular basis for ongoing medicalcare. This person

was driving a vehicle with unsafe tires, and was
concerned about being abte to make it to att of their
appointments. The Resource Center was abte to
secure funding to purchase new tires and ensure that
this client could continue to receive care.

A homeowner in Fatts City contacted the Resource
Center about assistance with a new stove. The one in
their home has broken and both residents had
specialdietary needs due to chronic heatth
conditions. The Resource Center was able to assist
with the purchase of a new stove to ensure that this
family was able to prepare meals to meet their
dietary needs.

8



Ptans for the
Futu re

Partners are working with WVP Health Authority to
determine the feasibitity of pilot program to offer
medical services beginning in late summer 2025

A
A
A



Thank You to Our Funders!

willomette
heulth council EUUW

End of the md, stqrt of yqr qdventure

FCO

-

FAMITY &
COMMUNITY
OUTREACH

s Salem Health.
Hospitals & Clinics

ITE tlAI(
G0lrsrnuGTrolr

POLK COUNTY



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY

TO:

POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-317 4

(503) 623-1888 *rex (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

May 30,2025

Reclassification of a Health Services Administrative Analyst II

Wednesday - June 4,2025 (5 minutes)

FROM

DATE:

SUBJECT

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Health Services Administrative Analyst
il.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is recommended that Amanda McMullen, in Health Services, be reclassified from a Health Services

Administrative Analyst II to a Management Analyst I. Health Services reorganized their Applications
Team a couple of months ago, which made Amanda the primary person responsible for the Electronic
Health Record (EHR) system for all of Behavioral Health. She has also been acting in a lead capacity,

and all of these duties fall within the scope of the Management Analyst L

Amanda is currently at step 5 of the Health Services Administrative Analyst II position which is $5,698

(at .9 FTE) monthly. If the reclassification is approved, she would move to step 3 of the Management

Analyst I position which is$6,227 (at .9 FTE).

Should the reclassification be approved, it would be back dated and effective May 1, 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This reclassification will have an impact on the budget for FY 24-25 of approximately $4,000
including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months. This number is lessened by the fact that

Amanda also currently receives a 5oh incentive pay for a leadership role.



LK COUNTY

Pox CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS' OREGON 97338
(s03') 623-9231

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Austin McGuigan, Community Development Director

May 27,2025

Personal Services Contract

Wednesday Agenda - June 412025 Consent Agenda

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT

BECOMMENDATION:
Approve contract for Hearings Officer services with Leslie Howell'

ISSUE:

Should Polk County enter into an agreement with Leslie Howell to provide Hearings Officer
services at the negotiated rates?

BACKGROUND:

The Polk County Code of Ordinances andZoningOrdinance re_gu!1e Pol\County to. provide a..

Hearings Officei'for certain applications and proieedings. Lesli-e Howell has served as the Polk
Counry-Hearings Officer sinc-e20tO. The conlract proposed for fiscal year 2025-2026 would
includ"e betweei 4 and 4.5o/o increases to the hearing rates over the previous contracted rates in
order to adjust for the increased costs of providing service.

DISCUSSION/ALTERNATIVES :

l. Approve personal services contract;

2. Do not approve personal services contract; or

3. Other, as determined by the Board.

SUMMARY:

This contract would allow the Community Development Department to process current
applications that require a Hearings Officer.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The2025-2026 Community Development budget provides for primary Hearings Officer services
at the negotiated rates in Appendix C of the Contract.



PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Polk County, a political

subdivision of the State of Oregon, and Leslie Howell, hereafter referred to as "Contractor."

Polk County is authorized to obtain, by contract, services necessary to conduct its operation.

Contractor has available, or can cause to be provided, the facilities, skills and staff required for the

performance of these services.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties above-

mentioned, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants stated as follows:

1.0 Effective date. This Agreement is effective when signed by Contractor and County.

2.0 services. Contractor shall perform the necessary services to conduct the

program(s) more fully described in Appendix "8", attached hereto and by this reference

incorporated into this Agreement. Services shall be performed in accordance with a schedule

approved by Polk County.

3.0 Assisnment. Neither party shall assign, sublet or transfer any interest in or duty

under this agreement without the written consent of the other, and no assignment shall be of any

force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other parfy has so consented.

4.0 Laws and resulations. Polk County and Contractor agree to comply with the

ordinances and regulations of Polk County; applicable provisions in any contract between Polk

County and the State of Oregon relating to the services to be provided under this Agreement by

the Contractor; and all provisions of Federal and State law, rules and regulations relating to

Contractor's performance of services under this Agreement. Contractor further expressly agrees

to comply, as applicable, with the statutory language contained in Appendix "A".

In the case of an act or duty of Polk County, imposed upon Polk County by the State of

Oregon, which, by the nature of this Agreement, Polk County determines to be within the scope of

this Agreement and is to be performed by Contractor, Contractor shall perform such act or duty on

behalf of Polk County.

5.0 Conflict of Interest. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall

not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the

performance of its services. Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this contract no

person having any such interest shall be employed.

6.0 Monitorine. Contractor agrees that time slips and billings that pertain to services

under this Agreement shall be open for inspection by Polk County's agents at any reasonable time

https://d. docs.live.net/bf6d6f28 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK./Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc

Polk County Contract No. 25-72



during business hours. All hearings records and exhibits, time slips and billings shall be provided

promptly after adecision is rendered.

7.0 Payments/Consideration. Polk County shall pay Contractor pursuant to the terms

and conditions stated in the attached Appendix "C".

8.0 Withholding payments; liquidated damages. Notwithstanding any other payment

provision of this Agreement, if contractor fails to submit required reports when due, or fails to

perform or document the perforrnance of contracted services, Polk County may immediately

withhold payments under this Agreement.

9.0 Termination. All or part of this Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of

both parties, or by either party at any time for convenience after 30 days notice in writing. Polk

County may terminate all or part of this Agreement for any one or more of the reasons specified

below:

9.1 After 10 days notice, if funding to Polk County from Federal, State or other sources

is not obtained or is not continued at levels sufficient to allow for purchase of the indicated quantify

of services. Polk County will give more notice whenever possible.

9.2 After 30 days notice, if Federal or State regulations are changed in such away that

services no longer are allowable under this Agreement.

g.3 Immediately, on notice of denial, revocation or non-renewal of any letter of

approval, license or certificate required by law, rule or regulation to be held by Contractor to

provide a service under this Agreement.

9.4 Immediately, if Contractor fails to provide services, or fails to meet any performance

standard as specified by Polk County in this Agreement (or subsequent modifications of this

Agreement) within the time therein specified, or any extensions thereof.

9.5 Immediately, if Polk County has evidence that Contractor has endangered or is

endangering the health and safety of clients, residents, staffor the public.

9.6 Immediately, upon failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions of this

Agreement and all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations.

9.7 Termination, or the withholding of payments or reduction of obligation under

Section 6.0, shall be without prejudice to any other obligation or liability of either party accrued

prior thereto.

10.0 Independent contractor. Contractor is engaged as an Independent Contractor.

l0.l Contractor will be solely responsible for payment of any Federal or State taxes

2hnps://d.docs live.nevbf6d6D8I6400453/Polk county/Invoices/PSK,/Howell PSK 25-26 (I).doc



required as a result of this Agreement.

10.2 This Agreement is not intended to entitle Contractor to any benefits generally

granted to Polk County employees. By way of illustration, but without limitation, the benefits

which are not intended to be extended by this Agreement to the Contractor are vacation, holiday

and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure, medical and dental coverage, life and disability

insurance, overtime, Social Security, Workers' Compensation, unemployment compensation or

retirement benefits.

10.3 Contractor is an Independent Contractor for purposes of the Workers'Compensation

Law (ORS Chapter 656) and is solely liable for any Workers' Compensation coverage under this

Agreement. If Contractor has the assistance of other persons in the perforrnance of this Agreement,

Contractor shall qualiff and remain qualified for the term of this Agreement as an insured employer

under ORS 656.407. If Contractor performs this Agreement without the assistance of any other

person, Contractor shall execute a Joint Declaration with Polk County's Workers' Compensation

carrier absolving Polk County of any and all liability as provided in ORS 656.029.

I 1.0 Delegation and reports. Contractor shall not delegate the responsibility for

providing services under this Agreement to any other individual or agency, and shall provide Polk

County with periodic reports at the frequency and with the information required by Polk County.

12.0 Constraints. This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon

counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon funds being

available and appropriated therefor. Any provisions in this Agreement which would conflict with

law are deemed inoperative to that extent. The statutory provisions set out in Appendix "A" of this

Agreement, as applicable, constitute a part of this Agreement. It is understood by both parties that

no commitments have been or are made by either party beyond the end of this Agreement.

13.0 Hold harmless. County has relied upon the professional ability and training of

Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor warrants that all of its

work will be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and standards

as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state, and local laws, it being understood that

acceptance of Contractor's work by County shall not operate as a waiver or release. Contractor is

responsible for injury to persons or property caused directly or indirectly by reason of activities by

Contractor, its subcontractor or the employees of either, in the performance of this Agreement.

Contractor fuither agrees to indemniff, save harmless and defend Polk County, its offtcers, agents

and employees from and against all claims, suits, actions, damages, costs, attorneys fees, losses and

Jhttps://d. docs.live.net/bf6d6128 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



expenses in any manner resulting from, arising out of, or connected with any such damage and/or

injury that may be asserted by any person or entity in connection with the performance of work

described in this contract, except liability arising out of the sole negligence of the County and its

employees. Such indemnification shall also cover claims brought against Polk County under state

or federal workers compensation laws. If any aspect of this indemnity provision shall be found to

be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the

validity of the remainder of this provision.

14.0 Settlement of disputes. Differences between a Contractor and Polk County, or

between contractors, will be resolved when possible at appropriate management levels. Polk

County has ultimate responsibility and authority for resolution of disagreements among subcontract

agencies.

15.0 Non-discrimination. Contractor agrees that no person, on grounds of race, color,

creed, national origin, sex, marital status or age, will suffer discrimination in the performance of this

Agreement when employed by Contractor.

16.0 Attomey fees. If an action, suit or proceeding, including appeal therefrom, is

brought for failure to observe any terms of this Agreement, each party is responsible for its own

attomey's fees, expenses, costs and disbursements for the action, suit, proceeding or appeal.

17.0 Disputes. All disputes, and all claims for alleged breach of contract shall, within ten

days of the commencement of dispute, be presented in writing to Polk County for decision; but in

the meanwhile, Contractor shall proceed with the work as directed.

l7.l Contractor shall submit in detail the claim and proof thereof. Polk County, with

reasonable promptness, shall render its decision to the Contractor in writing.

17.2 If Contractor does not agree with any decision of Polk County, Contractor shall

except that decision from the final release.

17.3 If Contractor has (l) given notice of any dispute within the limit stated above; (2)

taken exception to Polk County's decision in the release; and (3) brought suit by way of Arbitration

Proceeding pursuant to ORS 36.300 through 36.365 within 120 days after receipt of final payment

under this contract or within six months of a written request by Polk County that Contractor submit

a final voucher and release, whichever time is the lesser; then Polk County's decision shall not be

final and conclusive but the dispute shall be tried in arbitration on its merits. If the above conditions

precedent have not been met, Contractor agrees that her noncompliance with the conditions

precedent constitutes a waiver of right to assert a claim.

4htrps://d. docs.live.net/bf6d6f28 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK,/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



18.0 Captions. The headings or captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of

the reader, and do not have legal effect.

19.0 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by the laws of the State of

Oregon.

20.0 Venue. Venue relating to this Agreement shall be in the district or circuit courts of

the State of Oregon for Polk County, located in Dallas, Oregon.

21.0 Severabilitv. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason held invalid or

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate,

distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining

portions hereof.

22.0 ConfidentialiW. Contractor understands and agrees that some records that will be

made available are or may be considered confrdential under ORS 308.209 and 308.413. Contractor

agrees to comply with any and all confidentiality laws and regulations and will sign a confidentiality

agreement if provided by Polk County.

23.0 Term of Asreement. This agreement shall expire June30,2026.

THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES TIIE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

PARTIES. NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE OF TERMS OF

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BIND EITHER PARTY I]NLESS IN WRITING AND

SIGI\ED BY BOTH PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNDERSTAI\DINGS, AGREEMENTS,

OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN

REGARDING THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTO& BY HIS SIGNATURE BELOW,

HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SHE HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT,

UNDERSTANDS IT AND AGREES TO BE BOUI\D BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

5hups://d. docs. live.neUbf6d6f28 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



SIGNATURE PAGE

DATED this 26 day of May ,2025.

BY /rtLb r{r,r"//
Contractor

DATED this day of-,2025

POLK COUNTY:

BY

Title:

Approved as to Form:

County Counsel

6https://d.docs.live .net/bf6d6f28l6400453/Polk County/lnvoices/PSK/Howelt PSK 25-26 (l).doc



APPENDIX ''A''

CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS

Payment of Subcontractors. Industrial Accident Fund Contributions. Liens and Withholdins
Taxes

Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to such contractor labor

or material for the prosecution of the work provided for in this contract.

Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from such

contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.

Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state, county,

school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivisions thereol on account of any labor

or material fumished.

Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to

oRS 316.167.

Payment of Claims bv Countv

If Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor or services

fumished to the contractor or a subcontractor by any person in connection with the public contract

as such claim becomes due, the proper officer or officers representing Polk County may pay such

claim to the person fumishing the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against

funds due or to become due the Contractor by reason of this contract. Payment of a claim in this

manner shall not relieve the contractor or the contractor's surety from obligation with respect to any

unpaid claims.

Hours of Labor

All laborers providing contract services shall be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked

in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under these contracts who are

excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 USC section 201 to 209 from receiving

overtime.

Pavment for Medical Care

Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, association or

corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care or other needed care and affention,

incident to sickness or injury, to the employees for such Contractor, of all sums which the

Contractor agrees to pay for such services and all moneys and sums which the contractor collected

or deducted from the wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the

purpose of providing or paying for such service.

7https://d.docs.live.neVbf6d6{28 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



Providing Workers' ComDensation Insurance

All employers working under this contract are subject employers who will comply with ORS

656.017.

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance

Contractor agrees that Contractor will comply and does comply with all relevant provisions of the

Americans with Disabilities Act, to the extent required by the Act.

8https://d. docs.live.net/bf6d6f28 I 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



APPENDIX ''B''

Contractor shall serve as the primary Hearing's Officer for Polk County with the following

duties:

I Conduct land use Public Hearings on the second and third Tuesday of each month at

6 pm, or other days/times, as coordinated and scheduled between Polk County and

Contractor. Conduct solid waste related and all other Public Hearings as coordinated

and scheduled between Polk County and Contractor. Polk County reserves the right,

after consultation with Contractor, to adjust monthly schedules depending upon

County needs.

Review and hear all Public Hearings placed on each monthly Hearings Officer
meeting agenda by the Community Development Director or Chairman of the Board

of Commissioners.

Provide written decisions on each Public Hearing, setting out findings, conclusions

and recommendations.

4. Provide these decisions in a timely fashion.

Polk County shall provide support staff to assist in notices to applicants, staff reports and

secretarial services for report writing.

2.

J.

9https://d.docs.live.net/bf6d6f28 1 6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSK/Howell PSK 25-26 ( I ).doc



APPENDIX ''C''

Payment of Contractor. Subject to availability of funds, County shall pay Contractor each

month for rendering the services listed in this Agreement as set forth in Appendix "8" as

follows:

For a hearing(s) to review Zone and Comprehensive Plan changes, the Contractor will be paid

52p20. In addition, if a public hearing under this section is continued more than once (i.e., there

are more than two separate public meetings), the Contractor will be paid an additional $570.00'

For all other hearings, such as variances, appeals ofstaffdecisions, rate-increase hearings to set

or increase uniform rates for all collection franchises, code enforcement hearings, the Contractor

will be paidSl,220.00 per hearing.

County may schedule more than one hearing night in any calendar month to provide the public

and Counfy agencies opportunity for prompter hearings.

https://d.docs.live.net/bf6d6f28I6400453/Polk County/Invoices/PSKJHowell PSK 25-26 (I) doc l0



 
CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 
 

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Phone Number (Ext): 2550 

Department: Health Services: Public Health Consent Calendar Date: June 4, 2025 
 

Contractor Name: Dr. Caroline Castillo 
 

Address: 74 Touchstone  

City, State, Zip: Lake Oswego, OR 97035 
 

Effective Dates - From: July 01, 2025 Through: June 30, 2026 
 

Contract Amount: Varies 

 
Background: 

Caroline Castillo, M.D. has agreed to provide medical services for Polk County Public Health, as the 
Health Officer. 

 
Discussion: 

This contract is a continuation of services Caroline Castillo, M.D has been providing Polk County in 
the past fiscal year. Caroline Castillo, M.D. meets the criteria for a service provider and has been 
cleared to work with us through a criminal history records review.  

 
Fiscal Impact: 

The Public Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
contract. The fiscal year 2024-2025 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation 
of this agreement. 

 
Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Caroline Castillo, M.D. 

 
Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
Name: Rosana Warren E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Name:  E-mail:  

Name:  E-mail:  
 



CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 

COUNTY/DEPARTMENT: POLK COUNTY  

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

182 SW ACADEMY STREET 

DALLAS, OR 97338 

EIN#: 93-6002310 

CONTACT PERSON: ROSANA WARREN 

DATE ISSUED: 05/12/2025 

CONTRACTOR DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

74 TOUCHSTONE  

LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035 

SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

CONTACT PERSON: DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

SERVICES PROVIDED: To provide PH Medical Director services as described in 

Exhibit B.  

EFFECTIVE DATES: FROM JULY 01, 2025 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2026 

BUDGET LINE #: 235-8540-VARIES

DOLLAR AMOUNT: VARIES 

TERMS: Service Rates per Exhibit B 

ADDITIONAL 
COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 

HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 25-73

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

POLK COUNTY 

PUBLIC HEALTH 

182 SW ACADEMY STREET 

DALLAS, OR 97338 

EIN#: 93-6002310 

a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as "County" and 

DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

74 TOUCHSTONE DRIVE 

LAKE OSWEGO, OR 97035 

SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

WHEREAS, County is authorized to obtain, by contract, the services necessary to conduct its 

operation; and  

WHEREAS, Contractor has available, or can obtain, the necessary licenses or certificates 

required for the performance of said services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties above-mentioned, for and 

in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter stated as follows: 

SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. The County is desirous of securing the services of the Contractor to perform services 

more specifically outlined in Exhibit B: Statement of Work, based on Contractor’s 

specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

B. The Contractor shall provide authorized services to Polk County referrals at Contractor’s 

facilities, Polk County Buildings on space available basis, and/or consumer’s school 

facility, work location, or home depending upon the needs of the individual.  Depending 

on the nature of services provided, the location of services may be curtailed by Exhibit B: 

Statement of Work. 

C. Services shall be provided in accordance with the document entitled Exhibit B: 

Statement of Work, which is attached and by reference herein, made an integral part of 

this Agreement. 

1 



 

SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

A. As consideration for the services provided by the Contractor during the period beginning 

July 01, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026, payment shall be retroactive for approved 

services provided to Polk County referrals on or after the period beginning date. The 

Parties agree that the term of this agreement may be extended and any renewals and/or 

changes to this agreement must be submitted in writing, in the form of an amendment 

to this Contract and signed by both Parties. 

B. Agreement is effective upon the signature of all parties. It is understood by both parties 

that no commitments have been or are made by either party beyond the termination of 

the Agreement. 

C. The County will pay to the Contractor, by check(s) or ACH direct payment upon receipt of 

an authorized billing document at the rates outlined in Exhibit B and as approved by Polk 

County. Billings shall be submitted to HS Fiscal either electronically to 

hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us or by mail to  Polk County Health Services Business Services 

Department, 182 SW Academy Street Suite 204, Dallas, Oregon 97338. The County shall 

endeavor remit payment within 2-3 weeks of receipt of appropriate billing, supporting 

documentation and signed invoice. 

D. It is agreed that Contractor shall accept payment from Polk County as full and total 

payment for services and that Contractor shall not bill any Polk County clients (or their 

insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

E. Contractor is engaged hereby as an independent contrac tor, and the services to be 

rendered are those of an independent contractor, subject to ORS Chapter 656, and will 

be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

i. Contractor will be solely responsible for payment of any Federal or State taxes 

required as a result of this Agreement. 

ii. This Agreement is not intended to entitle Contractor to any benefits generally 

granted to County employees. Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the 

benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Agreement to the Contractor 

are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure, medical and 

dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security, workers' 

compensation, unemployment compensation or retirement benefits . 

iii. The Contractor is an independent contractor for purposes of the Oregon Workers' 

Compensation Law (ORS Chapter 656) and is solely liable for any Workers' 

2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 

Compensation coverage under this Agreement.  If the Contractor has the assistance 

of other persons in the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor shall qualify 

and remain qualified for the term of this Agreement as a direct responsibility 

employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib uting employer under ORS 656.411. 

F. Exhibit A – Business Associate Agreement attached hereto is by this reference 

incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Extent of Agreement: This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon 

by the parties.  No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

B. Captions: The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 

way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

C. Payment as Sole Monetary Obligation of the County: The Contractor is engaged as an 

independent contractor.  Payment as provided herein shall be the sole monetary 

obliga tion of the County.  Unless otherwise specified, the responsi bility for payment of 

all operating costs, Federal, State, County or city taxes/assessments and any other 

charges imposed by law upon employers shall be the sole responsibility of the 

Contractor. 

D. Licensing and Program Standards: The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 

State, County, and municipal standards for licensing, and any other standards or criteria 

described in this Agreement and its attachments. 

E. Contractor-client Relationship: The Contractor will establish a system through which a 

client and/or the client’s parents or guardian may represent grievances about the 

operation of the Contractor’s service program.  At the time arrangements are made for 

the Contractor’s service, the Contractor will advise the child and parents or guardian of 

the provision.  The Contractor shall notify the County of all unresolved grievances. 

F. Safeguarding of Client Information: 

i. The use or disclosure by any party of any information concern ing a recipient of 

services purchased under this Agreement, for any purpose not directly connected 

with the administra tion of the County's or the Contractor's responsibilities with 

respect to such purchased services, is prohibited, except on written consent of the 

County, or if the County is not the recipient, on written consent of the recipient or 

attorney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obligations under Exhibit A. 

3 



 

ii. For the purposes of safeguarding protected client information, Contractor agrees to 

abide by all County rules and regulations regarding Communication technology as 

documented in the County’s Communications Technology Policy. Contractors 

providing services from a County facility will be provided appropriate County 

equipment to perform its duties under this agreement.  To the extent that Contractor 

elects to use their own technology (computer, cellular phone, etc…) Contractor 

warrants that such equipment shall be compliant with County rules and regulations, 

and its obligations under Exhibit A. 

G. Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Rehabilitation Act of 1973: The Contractor agrees to comply 

with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 504 of the 

Rehabilita tion Act of 1973, and their implementing Federal regulations, including 

Executive Order 11246 as amended. 

H. Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

i. The Contractor agrees to establish and exercise such controls as are necessary to 

assure full compliance with Federal regulations and the County’s guidelines on 

allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

ii. The Contractor agrees to maintain fiscal records consistent with generally accepted 

accounting practices and controls, which will properly reflect all direct and indirect 

costs and funds expended in the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor 

shall make these records available at reasonable times upon request to State and 

Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

iii. The Contractor agrees to collect financial statistics on a regular basis and to make 

financial reports at times in the form prescribed by the County. 

I. Program Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: The Contractor agrees 

to maintain program records including statistical records, and to provide program 

records to the County at times and in the form prescribed by the County.  The Contractor 

agrees to establish and exercise such controls as are necessary to assure full compliance 

with the program and facilities review (including meetings with consumers, reviews of 

service records, review of policy and procedures, review of staffing ratios and job 

descriptions, and meetings with any staff directly of indirectly involved in the provision 

of services) may be conducted at any reasonable time by State and Federal personnel 

and other persons authorized by the County. 

J. Retention of Records: The Contractor agrees to retain all books, records, and other 

documents relevant to this Agreement for three (3) years after final payment is made 

4 



 

under the Agreement or all pending matters are closed, whichever is later.  If litigation or 

other action involving the Agreement is started before the end of the three (3) year 

period, the records shall be retained until all issues arising out of the action are resolved 

or until the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

K. Insurance: Contractor agrees that it is an independent contractor and not an agent of 

the County. Notwithstanding the Contractor's independent contractor status, it is agreed 

and understood that Contractor's actions pursuant to this contract and the attached 

scope of work will be assumed by Polk County and covered by the County's general 

liability coverage. In the event of any loss or claim made based upon Contractor's actions 

pursuant to this contract, Polk County will defend and indemnify Contractor. In the event 

there is any change in the County's insurance coverage Contractor shall be notified 

within 30 days of such change. 

L. Subcontracting: Unless subcontracting is authorized elsewhere in the Agree ment, the 

Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under 

this Agreement without obtaining prior written approval from the County, which 

approval shall be attached to the original Agreement. Approval by the County of a 

subcontract shall not result in any obligations of the County in addition to the agreed 

rates of payment and total consideration.  Any subcontracts which the County may 

authorize shall contain all requirements of this Agreement, and the Contractor shall be 

responsible for the performance of the subcontractor. 

M. Re-negotiation or Modification: Any alterations, variations, modifications to or waivers 

of provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been reduced to 

writing, duly signed, and approved by the Contractor and the County and attached to 

the original of this Agreement. 

N. Excuses for Nonperformance: Neither party to this Agreement shall be held responsible 

for delay or failure in performance of the activities required herein when such delay or 

failure is due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 

party.  Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, fire, flood, epidemic, strikes, 

acts of God or the public enemy, unusually severe weather, legal acts of public 

authorities, or delays or defaults caused by public carriers, which cannot reasonably be 

forecast or provided against.  Either party may terminate the Agreement after 

reasonably determining that such delay or failure will prevent continued performance of 

the Agreement, and after giving written notice to the other party of the cause, its effect 

on Agreement performance and effec tive date of termination.  If the Agreement is so 

terminated, the obligation of the County shall be limited to payment for services 

provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termination. 

5 



 

O. Remedies: If the Contractor fails to provide the services or perform any of the other 

requirements under the Contract, and such failure is not excused under the paragraph 

titled "Excuses for Nonperformance", the County, after giving the Contractor written 

notice of such failure, may withhold part or all of the Contractor's payment for the 

services until such failure is corrected.  If the Contractor does not correct such failure 

within a reasonable time allowed by the County, the County may terminate the 

Agreement in accordance with the clause titled "Termination."  However, this paragraph, 

and any actions taken or not taken under it, shall not affect the County's rights under the 

"Termination" clause. 

P. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or 

unilaterally by  either party at any time upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party in 

writing and delivered personally or by Certified Mail.  The County may also unilaterally 

terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to the Contrac tor, or 

at such later date as may be established by the County, under any of the following 

conditions: 

i. If funds, specifically authorized by Legislative acts, do not become available in 

amounts sufficient to allow for purchase of the stated quantity of services.  When 

possible and when agreed upon by the parties, the Agreement may be modified in 

accordance with the paragraph entitled “Re-negotiation or Modification” to 

accommodate a reduction in funds. 

ii. If Federal or State laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or changed in such a 

way that the services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this 

Agreement or no longer qualify for the funding proposed for payments authorized by 

this Agreement. 

iii. If any license or certificate required by law or regulation to be held by the Contractor 

to provide the services required by this Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked, 

not renewed, or changed in such a way that the Contractor no longer meets 

requirements for such license or certificate. 

iv. Termination under this clause shall be without prejudice to any obligations or 

liabilities of either party already reasonably incurred prior to such termination, 

except that the Contractor shall be solely responsible for its obligations or liabilities 

after the termination date, which obligations or liabilities result from the 

Contractor's failure to provide for termination of, or exercises the right to terminate, 

its commitments.  No right of action or damages shall accrue to the benefit of the 

Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

6 



 

v. The County, by written notice of default (including breach of contract) to the 

Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

a. If the Contractor fails to provide the services called for by this Agreement within 

the time speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

b. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other requirements of this 

Agreement; or 

c. If the Contractor so fails to perform the work required in the Agreement that 

performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms is endan gered, and 

after receipt of written notice from the County specifying such failure, the 

Contractor fails to correct such failure within ten (10) days or such longer period 

as the County may authorize. 

vi. If the Agreement is terminated under this clause, the County's obligations shall be 

limited to payment for services provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to 

the date of termination, less any damages suffered by the County. The rights and 

remedies of the County in this clause related to defaults (including breach of 

contract) by the Contractor shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other 

rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

Q. Hold Harmless: Except for claims arising in whole from the negligence of County, its 

employees or its agents, Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold County harmless from 

and against all actions, suits, claims and demands arising out of Contractor’s 

performance under this Contract and agrees to defend County in such actions, suits, 

claims and demands. 

R. Waiver of Default: Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 

subsequent default.  Waiver of breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be 

deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to 

be a modification of the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be such in writing, 

signed by an authorized representative of the County, and attached to the original 

Agreement in accordance with the paragraph entitled "Re-negotiation or Modification". 

S. Severability: The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared 

by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity 

of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 

obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not 

contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

7 



 

T. Fees Prohibited: The Contractor will not impose or demand any fees from any person or 

agency for services provided and paid for under this Agreement, unless the fees have 

been approved in advance by the County in writing. 

U. Non-Discrimination: The Contractor acknowledges that they are an equal opportunity 

employer and no person shall be denied services or discrimi nated against on the basis of 

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status or age, and 

there shall be no discrimination in the selection, compensation or the employ ment 

practices with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

V. Assignment of Agreement: The Contractor shall not assign or transfer its interest in this 

Agreement without prior written approval of the County, which shall be attached to the 

original Agreement.  Any such assignment, if approved, is subject to such conditions and 

provisions, as the County may deem necessary.  No approval by the County of any 

assignment or transfer of interest shall be deemed to create any obligation of the county 

in addition to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement consideration. 

W. Funds Authorized and Available: The County certifies that at the time of signing this 

Agree ment, sufficient funds are authorized and available, or are anticipated to be 

available, for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within the County's current 

appropri ation or limitation. 

X. Recovery of Overpayments: If billings under this Agreement, or under any Agreement 

between the Contractor and the County, result in payments to the Contractor for which 

the Contractor is not entitled under the terms of such Agreement, the County, after 

giving written notification to the Contractor, may withhold from payments due to the 

Contractor under this Agreement such amounts, over such periods of time, as are 

necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

Y. Criminal History Records Checks: Contractor agrees to authorize a review of state and 

federal records by Polk County as a qualified entity, to determine the nature of any 

criminal activity the Contractor may have been involved in accordance with OAR 

943-007-001 for purposes described in OAR 407-007-0400. No work will be assigned to 

Contractor until a Criminal History Check is completed and verified by the qualified 

entity.  Contractor shall notify Polk County within five days of being arrested, charged, or 

convicted of any crime. 

SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

A. Payment of Subcontractors, Industrial Accident Fund Contributions, Liens and 

Withholding Taxes: 

8 



 

1. Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to such 

contractor labor or material for the prosecution of the work provided for in this 

contract. 

2. Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 

from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

3. Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the 

state, county, school district, municipality, Municipal Corporation or subdivisions 

thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

4. Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from 

employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

B. Payment of Claims by County: If Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt 

payment of any claim for labor or services furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor 

by any person in connection with the public contract as such claim becomes due, the 

proper officer or officers representing Polk County may pay such claim to the person 

furnishing the labor or services and charge the amount of payment against funds due or 

to become due the Contractor by reason of this contract.  Payment of a claim in this 

manner shall not relieve the contractor or contractor’s surety from obligation with 

respect to any unpaid claims. 

C. Hours of Labor: All laborers providing contract services shall be paid at least time and a 

half for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals 

under these contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 USC 

section 201 to 209 from receiving overtime. 

D. Payment for Medical Care: Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any 

person, co-partnership, association or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and 

hospital care or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the 

employees for such Contractor, of all sums which the Contractor agrees to pay for such 

services and all moneys and sums which the contractor collected or deducted from the 

wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of 

providing or paying such service. 

E. Providing Workers’ Compensation Insurance: All employers working under this contract 

are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

F. Health Care Benefits for Employees: The Contractor shall provide health care benefits to 

all employees who are performing services previously performed by public employees if 

9 



 

the conditions specified in ORS 653.767 require such payment.  Benefits must equal or 

exceed those benefits specified in ORS 279.315(3).  This clause does not apply to 

contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

G. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: Contractor agrees that Contractor will 

comply and does comply with all relevant provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

10 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both parties agree to and accept all terms and conditions of this 

Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

● Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 

● Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 

CONTRACTOR 

 

 

 

Caroline Castillo MD. 

 
 
 
 

 
Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 

 

 

 

Chair 

Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 

 
Date 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

Morgan Smith 

County Counsel 

 
 
 

 
Date 
 

 

 

11 



 

EXHIBIT A:  

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

Between 

POLK COUNTY  and  DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO 

1. DEFINITIONS:  

Except as otherwise defined in this Business Associate Agreement (BA Agreement), any 

and all italicized terms herein shall have the same definition as those in the HIPAA 

Privacy Rule.1 Henceforth, Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, 

shall be referred to as “COUNTY” and DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO, shall be referred to as 

“CONTRACTOR”. 

2. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health Information other than 

as permitted or required by this BA Agreement or as permitted or required by law. 

B. CONTRACTOR agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of 

Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is 

known to CONTRACTOR of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by 

CONTRACTOR in violation of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

D. CONTRACTOR agrees to report to the COUNTY any use or disclosure of the Protected 

Health Information not provided for by this BA Agreement of which it becomes 

aware. 

E. CONTRACTOR agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it 

provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by, 

CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY agrees to the same restrictions and 

conditions that apply through this BA Agreement to CONTRACTOR with respect to 

such information. 

1 The use and disclosure of protected health information in performance of Business Associate functions is 
governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
and disclosure of protected health information is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
laws. 

12 



 

F. In the event that it is found to be applicable, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide access, 

at the request of the COUNTY, and in the time and manner necessary for reasonable 

compliance, to Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set to the 

COUNTY or, as directed by the COUNTY, to an Individual in order to meet the 

requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

G. In the event that it is found to be applicable, CONTRACTOR agrees to make any 

amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set that the 

COUNTY directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.526 at the request of 

CONTRACTOR, or an Individual, and in the time and manner necessary for 

reasonable compliance. 

H. CONTRACTOR agrees to make internal practices, books, and records, including 

policies and procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the use and 

disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by 

CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY available to the COUNTY or to the Secretary 

of the Department of Health and Human Services, in a time and manner agreed 

between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR or designated by the Secretary, for 

purposes of the Secretary determining the COUNTY’S compliance with the Privacy 

Rule. 

I. CONTRACTOR agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information 

and information related to such disclosures as would be required for the COUNTY to 

respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected 

Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

J. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide to the COUNTY or an Individual, in the time and 

manner necessary for reasonable compliance, information collected in accordance 

with section 2.A of this BA Agreement, to permit the COUNTY to respond to a 

request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health 

Information in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 

this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Information to 

perform certain health plan functions for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 

Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 

would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 

policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 

13 



 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

A. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any limitation(s) in the Notice of Privacy 

Practices of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.520, to the extent that 

such limitation may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 

Information. 

B. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revocation of, 

permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, to the 

extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 

Health Information. 

C. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any restriction to the use or disclosure of 

Protected Health Information that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 

CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 

disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

5. PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 

use or disclose Protected Health Information in any manner that would not be 

permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 

disclosure is permitted under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

6. TERM AND TERMINATION: 

A. Term. This BA Agreement shall be effective as of July 01, 2025, and shall terminate 

when all of the Protected Health Information provided by the COUNTY to 

CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 

destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 

Protected Health Information, protections are extended to such information, in 

accordance with the termination provisions in this Section. 

B. Termination for Cause. Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge of a material breach by 

CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

i. Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 

intervention of the COUNTY within the timeline specified in Section III (P) of the 

Polk County Agreement; or 

ii. Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 

the Polk County Agreement within the timeline specified in Section III of the Polk 

County Agreement. At the direction of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

14 



 

terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permitted in 

Section III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 

breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and corrective action 

described in paragraph (i.) of this section; or 

iii. If neither termination nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the violation 

to the Secretary. 

C. Effect of Termination. 

i. Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this section, upon termination of this BA 

Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 

Health Information received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 

CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 

Health Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 

CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 

Information. 

ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 

Protected Health Information is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 

COUNTY written notification of the conditions that make return or destruction 

infeasible. Upon written acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 

destruction of Protected Health Information is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 

extend the protections of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 

Information and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 

Information to those purposed that make the return or destruction infeasible, for 

so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Information. 

7. MISCELLANEOUS: 

A. Regulatory References. References in this BA Agreement to the Privacy Rule or any 

section of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or section as in effect or as 

amended. 

B. Amendment. The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take such action as is 

necessary to amend this BA Agreement from time to time as is necessary for the 

COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

C. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of CONTRACTOR under Section 6.C of 

this BA Agreement shall survive the termination of this BA Agreement. 

15 



 

D. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 

COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 

the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 

Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 

federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 

federal law shall control. 

8. SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

A. Background Requirement: The COUNTY, in accordance with § 164.306 and § 164.308 

(b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 

Protected Health Information on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 

satisfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 

appropriately safeguard the information. The COUNTY must document the 

satisfactory assurances through a written contract or other arrangement with the 

CONTRACTOR. 

B. Part I. Security Assurances: The CONTRACTOR will Implement administrative, 

physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 

confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 

information that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 

COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 

1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 

(45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

i. Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 

information, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 

protect it. 

ii. Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

iii.  Authorize termination of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 

that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

C. Part II. Other arrangements: When the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR are both 

governmental entities, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

i. It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 

contains terms that accomplish the objectives of Part I.; or 

16 



 

ii. Other law (including regulations adopted by the COUNTY or the CONTRACTOR) 

contains requirements applicable to the CONTRACTOR that accomplish the 

objectives of Part I. 

D. If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a function or activity on behalf of 

the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the definition of CONTRACTOR as 

specified in § 160.103 of the regulation to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 

CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 

Information on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 

without meeting the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will attempt in 

good faith to obtain satisfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 

document the attempt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 

not obtained.  

17 



 

EXHIBIT B: 

 
POLK COUNTY CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICER 
 

 STATEMENT OF WORK 

POLK COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon and, DR. CAROLINE CASTILLO, 

hereinafter called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

1. STATEMENT OF SERVICES. This position meets the requirements of ORS 431.418 for a 

local health department to have a physician to act as a medical director to the medical 

and paramedical aspects of public health programs. This position also performs a Health 

Officer role to promote population based health. Contractor shall perform Medical 

Director services as described below. 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION. Contractor shall provide skilled medical consultation, 

oversight and sign standing medical orders for County’s Public Health programs 

(Family Planning, Immunization, WIC, STD and General Health Clinics) up to four 

(4) hours per month. In the event of a Public Health emergency, Contractor may 

provide additional hours, for the duration of the emergency and as mutually 

agreed by both parties.  

B. REQUIRED SERVICES, DELIVERABLES AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE.  

i. Provide clinical consultations and medical direction to public health staff 

on-site or by phone regarding individual cases and outbreaks of Sexually 

Transmitted Infections, Immunizations, HIV Prevention, Communicable 

Disease Investigations, Tuberculosis, Environmental  Health and Blood 

borne Pathogens exposures. This includes client visits when 

medically appropriate. 

ii. Backup the Public Health Nurse Practitioner(s) by managing specific 

patient cases that are beyond the scope of the Public Health Department. 

iii. Be on-call during regular office hours for consultation with the nurse or 

nurse practitioners of the Public Health Department. Contractor agrees to 

return calls to the Public Health Department within thirty (30) minutes of 

contact from staff for urgent cases, and within sixty (60) minutes of 

contact from staff for non-urgent cases.  

18 



 

iv. Develops, reviews and approves medical standing orders and/or reviews, 

recommends revisions, and approves State-developed standing orders for 

Clinic services: Sexually Transmitted Infections, Immunizations, HIV 

Prevention, Communicable Disease Investigation, Tuberculosis treatment 

and case management and Code Blue emergency response.  

v. Review and approve Public Health Department medical policies, 

procedures, and protocols, upon request. 

vi. Promotes population health, through maintaining effective relationships 

with physicians,  other clinical providers and organizations, representing 

Public Health in a professional manner; this may include targeted 

outreach to the  medical community and providing public relations work 

when appropriate at community presentations and at professional and 

civic group meetings on public health issues. 

vii. Attend and participate in the quarterly Public Health Advisory Board 

meetings. Typical Health Advisory Board meetings are two (2) hours in 

duration. 

viii. Attend at least two (2) monthly staff meetings annually and provide 

in-service training to staff during meetings. Typical staff meetings are two 

(2) hours in duration.  

ix. Provides input on public health issues in the department. Upon approval 

by the County, Contractor may be asked to respond to media requests for 

information. 

x. Prescribe and dispense medication, if applicable, according to all rules 

governed by licensure,  Drug Enforcement administration (DEA) 

requirements and/or as supported by professional  guidelines, 

professional publications or as meets the standards of care in the 

community.  

xi. Provide documentation that meets Medicare, Medicaid and other 

contracted insurance requirements in paper or electronic form according 

to County policies and procedures. 

xii. Provide a qualified on-call physician to fulfill the duties of the Health 

Officer in Contractor’s absence. 

19 



 

C. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS. Contractor shall be solely responsible for and shall 

have control over the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of 

performing the work, subject to the plans and specifications under this Contract 

and shall be solely responsible for the errors and omissions of Contractor’s 

employees, subcontractors and agents.  

Contractor has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of 

its industry, trade or profession and Contractor will apply that skill and 

knowledge with care and diligence and perform Services in a timely, professional 

and workmanlike manner in accordance with standards applicable 

to Contractor’s industry, trade or profession. 

D. METHOD OF PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. County shall pay Contractor $793.10 per 

month based on a maximum regular contract expectation of 4 hours per month, 

paid at a rate of $198.25 per hour for completing all Services required under this 

Contract. Upon mutual agreement and written approval, monthly hours may be 

increased on a temporary basis at the discretion of Polk County Public Health 

Administrator at the hourly rate of $198.25 per hour. 

20 



 
CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 
 

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Phone Number (Ext): 2428 

Department: Health Services: Public Health Consent Calendar Date: June 04, 2025 
 

Contractor Name: Providence Health Plan 
 

Address: PO Box 4327 

City, State, Zip: Portland, OR 97208-4327 
 

Effective Dates - From: July 15, 2025 Through:  
 

Contract Amount:  $ Varies 

 
Background: 

OHA has awarded funding through PE63 to Polk County Public Health to provide Family Connect 
services. The Family Connects program is available to all expectant mothers in Polk County 
regardless of their ability to pay. To ensure access, Polk County is seeking to establish service rate 
agreements with commercial insurance providers. One such provider is Providence Health Plan.  

 
Discussion: 

This Agreement with Providence Health Plan establishes an in-network service relationship for 
home visiting services provided through Polk County Public Health’s Family Connects program to 
its members. Rates were negotiated by the Health Services Finance Officer and cover the costs of 
the service encounters. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

The amount varies as it is dependent on the number of Providence Health Plan clients served. It is 
anticipated that there will be a positive impact as there is increased ability to seek revenue from 
this provider's members. 

 
Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Polk County sign Amendment 2 with Providence Health Plan. 

 
Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
Name: Rosana Warren E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Name:  E-mail:  

Name:  E-mail:  
 



Amend SIG_CH_EXT_NNHVP FS Page 1        Contract ID: P11987365AA

AMENDMENT
TO THE

PROVIDENCE HEALTH PLAN, PROVIDENCE HEALTH ASSURANCE AND PROVIDENCE PLAN PARTNERS
PROVIDER AGREEMENT

Effective July 15, 2025, the Provider Agreement between PROVIDENCE HEALTH PLAN, PROVIDENCE HEALTH 
ASSURANCE AND PROVIDENCE PLAN PARTNERS (“Health Plan”) and Polk County Public Health Department, 
(“Agreement”) is amended as follows:

Amend the Commercial Line of Business, Providence Signature Network, Providence Choice Network and Providence 
Extend PPO Network Exhibit Fee Schedule, Newborn Nurse Home Visiting Provider.

The Commercial Line of Business, Providence Signature Network, Providence Choice Network and Providence Extend PPO 
Network Exhibit Fee Schedule, Newborn Nurse Home Visiting Provider, will be replaced in its entirety with the new 
Commercial Line of Business, Providence Signature Network, Providence Choice Network and Providence Extend PPO 
Network Exhibit Fee Schedule, Newborn Nurse Home Visiting Provider, attached to this Amendment.

Except as specifically provided by this Amendment, the Provider Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and 
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed in their names by the 
undersigned officers, the same being duly authorized to do so. 

POLK COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT PROVIDENCE HEALTH PLAN, PROVIDENCE 
HEALTH ASSURANCE AND PROVIDENCE 
PLAN PARTNERS

Signature Signature

Brad Garrigues
Print Name Print Name

Chief Growth Officer
Title Title

Date Date

Polk County Contract No. 25-74



SIG_CH_EXT_GRP NEG NNHVP - 2025 Page 2 Contract ID: P11987365AA

PROVIDENCE HEALTH PLAN, PROVIDENCE HEALTH ASSURANCE AND PROVIDENCE PLAN PARTNERS 
COMMERCIAL LINE OF BUSINESS

PROVIDENCE SIGNATURE NETWORK, PROVIDENCE CHOICE NETWORK AND PROVIDENCE EXTEND 
PPO NETWORK

EXHIBIT 

FEE SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 15, 2025   

NEWBORN NURSE HOME VISITING PROVIDER 

Services Procedure 
Code

Primary 
Modifier 

Secondary 
Modifier

Payment 
Source

Rate

Integrated Home Visit, Pre-Integrated Home 
Visit, and up to two follow up visits

99502 32 None Case Rate  $1856.00

Pre-Integrated Home Visit only 99502 32 TD Flat Rate  $427.00

Additional Newborn: Integrated Home Visit, 
Pre-Integrated Home Visit, and up to two 
follow up visits

99502 32 TT Flat Rate  $297.00

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
 Reimbursement will be at the allowed amount or billed charges, whichever is less. 
 Rates applicable to a Network Provider who is certified as a Newborn Nurse Home Visiting Provider (NNHVP) with the Maternal 

Child Health section of the Oregon Health Authority.
 Network Provider will adhere to all relevant Oregon Administrative Rules, including but not limited to, OAR 333-006-0000 

through 333-006-0190.
 Applicable rates will be updated per Oregon Health Authority guidelines and in accordance with ORS 433.301. 
 The Integrated Home Visit and any support newborn home visits are billed as a single claim and as a one-time case rate. 

The case rate is paid only when an Integrated Home Visit is completed and includes all services provided through the 
Family Connects Oregon program from the birth of the newborn through five months of age.

 New codes not included in the existing fee schedules may be evaluated and priced by Health Plan applying the most current 
published fee schedule rates, weights or RVUs. Service codes not encompassed by fee schedules may be priced at Health 
Plan’s discretion by applying a most comparable rate. The most current code sets will be recognized by Health Plan in 
accordance with HIPAA regulations.

 For any other commercial network, if there is no separate Fee Schedule, Network Provider will be reimbursed in 
accordance with the terms of this Fee Schedule and the Member’s benefits. 



 
CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 
 

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Phone Number (Ext): 2550 

Department: Health Services: Behavioral Health Consent Calendar Date: June 04, 2025 
 

Contractor Name: Iris Telehealth Medical Group, PA 
 

Address: 114 W. 7th Street, Suite 700 

City, State, Zip: Austin, TX 78701 
 

Effective Dates - From: July 01, 2025 Through: June 30, 2026 
 

Contract Amount: VARIES 
 

Background: 

Iris Telehealth Medical Group, PA has agreed to provide psychiatric medication management 
services to referred Polk County Behavioral Health individuals. 
 

 

Discussion: 

This contract is a continuation of services Iris Telehealth has been providing Polk County 
individuals in the past fiscal year. Iris Telehealth employees meet the criteria for service providers 
and those employed under Iris Telehealth have been cleared to do work with us through a criminal 
history records review.  
 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
contract and the Behavioral Health budget for fiscal year 2025-2026 was prepared in anticipation of 
this agreement.  
 

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Iris Telehealth Medical Group, PA. 
 

 
Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
Name: Rosana Warren E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Name:  E-mail:  
 



CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 

COUNTY/DEPARTMENT: POLK COUNTY  

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

182 SW ACADEMY STREET 

DALLAS, OR 97338 

ID#: 93-6002310 

CONTACT PERSON: ROSANA WARREN 

DATE ISSUED: 05/20/2025 

CONTRACTOR IRIS TELEHEALTH MEDICAL GROUP, PA 

114 W/ 7TH STREET, SUITE 700 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

ID#: 47-1062467 

CONTACT PERSON: MARIE MITCHELL 

SERVICES PROVIDED: To provide telepsychiatry services as outlined in Exhibit B. 

EFFECTIVE DATES: FROM JULY 01, 2025 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2026 

BUDGET LINE #: 240-8540-540-M83

DOLLAR AMOUNT: VARIES 

TERMS: Service Rates per Exhibit B 

ADDITIONAL 
COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 

HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 25-75

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

POLK COUNTY 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

182 SW ACADEMY STREET 

DALLAS, OR 97338 

EIN#: 93-6002310 

a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as "County" and 

IRIS TELEHEALTH MEDICAL GROUP, PA 

114 W/ 7TH STREET, SUITE 700 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

EIN#: 47-1062467 

hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

WHEREAS, County is authorized to obtain, by contract, the services necessary to conduct its 

operation; and  

WHEREAS, Contractor has available, or can obtain, the necessary licenses or certificates 

required for the performance of said services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the parties above-mentioned, for and 

in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter stated as follows: 

SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. The County is desirous of securing the services of the Contractor to perform services 

more specifically outlined in Exhibit B: Statement of Work, based on Contractor’s 

specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

B. The Contractor shall provide authorized services to Polk County referrals at Contractor’s 

facilities, Polk County Buildings on space available basis, and/or consumer’s school 

facility, work location, or home depending upon the needs of the individual.  Depending 

on the nature of services provided, the location of services may be curtailed by Exhibit B: 

Statement of Work. 

C. Services shall be provided in accordance with the document entitled Exhibit B: 

Statement of Work, which is attached and by reference herein, made an integral part of 

this Agreement. 

1 



 

SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

A. As consideration for the services provided by the Contractor during the period beginning 

July 01, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026, payment shall be retroactive for approved 

services provided to Polk County referrals on or after the period beginning date. Any 

renewals and/or changes to this agreement must be submitted in writing, in the form of 

an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Parties. 

B. Agreement is effective upon the signature of all parties. It is understood by both parties 

that no commitments have been or are made by either party beyond the termination of 

the Agreement. 

C. The County will pay to the Contractor, by check(s) or ACH direct payment upon receipt of 

an authorized billing document at the rates outlined in Exhibit B and as approved by Polk 

County. Billings shall be submitted to HS Fiscal either electronically to 

hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us or by mail to  Polk County Health Services Business Services 

Department, 182 SW Academy Street Suite 204, Dallas, Oregon 97338. The County shall 

endeavor remit payment within 2-3 weeks of receipt of appropriate billing, supporting 

documentation and signed invoice. 

D. It is agreed that Contractor shall accept payment from Polk County as full and total 

payment for services and that Contractor shall not bill any Polk County clients (or their 

insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

E. Contractor is engaged hereby as an independent contrac tor, and the services to be 

rendered are those of an independent contractor, subject to ORS Chapter 656, and will 

be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

i. Contractor will be solely responsible for payment of any Federal or State taxes 

required as a result of this Agreement. 

ii. This Agreement is not intended to entitle Contractor to any benefits generally 

granted to County employees. Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the 

benefits which are not intended to be extended by this Agreement to the Contractor 

are vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with pay, tenure, medical and 

dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, Social Security, workers' 

compensation, unemployment compensation or retirement benefits . 

iii. The Contractor is an independent contractor for purposes of the Oregon Workers' 

Compensation Law (ORS Chapter 656) and is solely liable for any Workers' 

Compensation coverage under this Agreement.  If the Contractor has the assistance 

2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 

of other persons in the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor shall qualify 

and remain qualified for the term of this Agreement as a direct responsibility 

employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib uting employer under ORS 656.411. 

F. Exhibit A – Business Associate Agreement attached hereto is by this reference 

incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Extent of Agreement: This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon 

by the parties.  No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

B. Captions: The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 

way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

C. Payment as Sole Monetary Obligation of the County: The Contractor is engaged as an 

independent contractor.  Payment as provided herein shall be the sole monetary 

obliga tion of the County.  Unless otherwise specified, the responsi bility for payment of 

all operating costs, Federal, State, County or city taxes/assessments and any other 

charges imposed by law upon employers shall be the sole responsibility of the 

Contractor. 

D. Licensing and Program Standards: The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 

State, County, and municipal standards for licensing, and any other standards or criteria 

described in this Agreement and its attachments. 

E. Contractor-client Relationship: The Contractor will establish a system through which a 

client and/or the client’s parents or guardian may represent grievances about the 

operation of the Contractor’s service program.  At the time arrangements are made for 

the Contractor’s service, the Contractor will advise the child and parents or guardian of 

the provision.  The Contractor shall notify the County of all unresolved grievances. 

F. Safeguarding of Client Information: 

i. The use or disclosure by any party of any information concern ing a recipient of 

services purchased under this Agreement, for any purpose not directly connected 

with the administra tion of the County's or the Contractor's responsibilities with 

respect to such purchased services, is prohibited, except on written consent of the 

County, or if the County is not the recipient, on written consent of the recipient or 

attorney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obligations under Exhibit A. 

3 



 

ii. For the purposes of safeguarding protected client information, Contractor agrees to 

abide by all County rules and regulations regarding Communication technology as 

documented in the County’s Communications Technology Policy. Contractors 

providing services from a County facility will be provided appropriate County 

equipment to perform its duties under this agreement.  To the extent that Contractor 

elects to use their own technology (computer, cellular phone, etc…) Contractor 

warrants that such equipment shall be compliant with County rules and regulations, 

and its obligations under Exhibit A. 

G. Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Rehabilitation Act of 1973: The Contractor agrees to comply 

with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 504 of the 

Rehabilita tion Act of 1973, and their implementing Federal regulations, including 

Executive Order 11246 as amended. 

H. Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

i. The Contractor agrees to establish and exercise such controls as are necessary to 

assure full compliance with Federal regulations and the County’s guidelines on 

allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

ii. The Contractor agrees to maintain fiscal records consistent with generally accepted 

accounting practices and controls, which will properly reflect all direct and indirect 

costs and funds expended in the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor 

shall make these records available at reasonable times upon request to State and 

Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

iii. The Contractor agrees to collect financial statistics on a regular basis and to make 

financial reports at times in the form prescribed by the County. 

I. Program Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: The Contractor agrees 

to maintain program records including statistical records, and to provide program 

records to the County at times and in the form prescribed by the County.  The Contractor 

agrees to establish and exercise such controls as are necessary to assure full compliance 

with the program and facilities review (including meetings with consumers, reviews of 

service records, review of policy and procedures, review of staffing ratios and job 

descriptions, and meetings with any staff directly of indirectly involved in the provision 

of services) may be conducted at any reasonable time by State and Federal personnel 

and other persons authorized by the County. 

J. Retention of Records: The Contractor agrees to retain all books, records, and other 

documents relevant to this Agreement for three (3) years after final payment is made 

4 



 

under the Agreement or all pending matters are closed, whichever is later.  If litigation or 

other action involving the Agreement is started before the end of the three (3) year 

period, the records shall be retained until all issues arising out of the action are resolved 

or until the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

K. Insurance: 

i. Contractor agrees that it is an independent contractor and not an agent of the 

County. The Contractor and the County shall not be responsible for any legal liability, 

loss, malpractice, damages, costs and expenses arising in favor of any person on 

account of personal injuries, death or property loss or damage occurring, growing 

out of, incident to or resulting directly or indirectly from the acts or omissions of the 

other party under this Agreement. 

ii. Contractor shall obtain, and at all times keep in effect, comprehensive liability 

insurance and property damage insurance covering activities, operations, and 

omissions of the Contractor, all subcontractors, and all named additional insureds.  

Contractor may satisfy this requirement for general liability insurance in any manner 

allowed by ORS 30.282. Such liability insurance, whatever the form, shall be in an 

amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and three 

million dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate. In the event of unilateral cancellation 

or restriction by the insurance company of the Contractor's insurance policy referred 

to in this paragraph, the Contractor shall immediately notify the County verbally and 

in writing. 

iii. As evidence of the insurance coverage required by this Agreement, and prior to the 

execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall furnish a Certificate of Insurance to 

Polk County, to Polk County Health Services, 182 SW Academy Street, Suite 204, 

Dallas, Oregon 97338.  The Certificate form, to be completed by the Contractor's 

insurer, naming Polk County as additional insured, will be maintained in the County's 

file of this Agreement. 

iv. There shall not be any cancellation, material changes or failure to renew such 

insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior notice to the County. 

L. Subcontracting: Unless subcontracting is authorized elsewhere in the Agree ment, the 

Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under 

this Agreement without obtaining prior written approval from the County, which 

approval shall be attached to the original Agreement. Approval by the County of a 

subcontract shall not result in any obligations of the County in addition to the agreed 

rates of payment and total consideration.  Any subcontracts which the County may 

5 



 

authorize shall contain all requirements of this Agreement, and the Contractor shall be 

responsible for the performance of the subcontractor.  Contractor may subcon tract 

medical investigator's duties so long as the sub contractor possesses medical 

qualifications equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

M. Re-negotiation or Modification: Any alterations, variations, modifications to or waivers 

of provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been reduced to 

writing, duly signed, and approved by the Contractor and the County and attached to 

the original of this Agreement. 

N. Excuses for Nonperformance: Neither party to this Agreement shall be held responsible 

for delay or failure in performance of the activities required herein when such delay or 

failure is due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 

party.  Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, fire, flood, epidemic, strikes, 

acts of God or the public enemy, unusually severe weather, legal acts of public 

authorities, or delays or defaults caused by public carriers, which cannot reasonably be 

forecast or provided against.  Either party may terminate the Agreement after 

reasonably determining that such delay or failure will prevent continued performance of 

the Agreement, and after giving written notice to the other party of the cause, its effect 

on Agreement performance and effec tive date of termination.  If the Agreement is so 

terminated, the obligation of the County shall be limited to payment for services 

provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termination. 

O. Remedies: If the Contractor fails to provide the services or perform any of the other 

requirements under the Contract, and such failure is not excused under the paragraph 

titled "Excuses for Nonperformance", the County, after giving the Contractor written 

notice of such failure, may withhold part or all of the Contractor's payment for the 

services until such failure is corrected.  If the Contractor does not correct such failure 

within a reasonable time allowed by the County, the County may terminate the 

Agreement in accordance with the clause titled "Termination."  However, this paragraph, 

and any actions taken or not taken under it, shall not affect the County's rights under the 

"Termination" clause. 

P. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or 

unilaterally by  both parties at any time upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party 

in writing and delivered personally or by Certified Mail.  The County may also unilaterally 

terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to the Contrac tor, or 

at such later date as may be established by the County, under any of the following 

conditions: 

6 



 

i. If funds, specifically authorized by Legislative acts, do not become available in 

amounts sufficient to allow for purchase of the stated quantity of services.  When 

possible and when agreed upon by the parties, the Agreement may be modified in 

accordance with the paragraph entitled “Re-negotiation or Modification” to 

accommodate a reduction in funds. 

ii. If Federal or State laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or changed in such a 

way that the services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this 

Agreement or no longer qualify for the funding proposed for payments authorized by 

this Agreement. 

iii. If any license or certificate required by law or regulation to be held by the Contractor 

to provide the services required by this Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked, 

not renewed, or changed in such a way that the Contractor no longer meets 

requirements for such license or certificate. 

iv. Termination under this clause shall be without prejudice to any obligations or 

liabilities of either party already reasonably incurred prior to such termination, 

except that the Contractor shall be solely responsible for its obligations or liabilities 

after the termination date, which obligations or liabilities result from the 

Contractor's failure to provide for termination of, or exercises the right to terminate, 

its commitments.  No right of action or damages shall accrue to the benefit of the 

Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

v. The County, by written notice of default (including breach of contract) to the 

Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

a. If the Contractor fails to provide the services called for by this Agreement within 

the time speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

b. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other requirements of this 

Agreement; or 

c. If the Contractor so fails to perform the work required in the Agreement that 

performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms is endan gered, and 

after receipt of written notice from the County specifying such failure, the 

Contractor fails to correct such failure within ten (10) days or such longer period 

as the County may authorize. 

vi. If the Agreement is terminated under this clause, the County's obligations shall be 

limited to payment for services provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to 

7 



 

the date of termination, less any damages suffered by the County. The rights and 

remedies of the County in this clause related to defaults (including breach of 

contract) by the Contractor shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other 

rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

Q. Hold Harmless: Except for claims arising in whole from the negligence of County, its 

employees or its agents, Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold County harmless from 

and against all actions, suits, claims and demands arising out of Contractor’s 

performance under this Contract and agrees to defend County in such actions, suits, 

claims and demands. 

R. Waiver of Default: Waiver of any default shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 

subsequent default.  Waiver of breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be 

deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and shall not be construed to 

be a modification of the terms of the Agreement unless stated to be such in writing, 

signed by an authorized representative of the County, and attached to the original 

Agreement in accordance with the paragraph entitled "Re-negotiation or Modification". 

S. Severability: The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared 

by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity 

of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 

obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not 

contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

T. Fees Prohibited: The Contractor will not impose or demand any fees from any person or 

agency for services provided and paid for under this Agreement, unless the fees have 

been approved in advance by the County in writing. 

U. Non-Discrimination: The Contractor acknowledges that they are an equal opportunity 

employer and no person shall be denied services or discrimi nated against on the basis of 

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status or age, and 

there shall be no discrimination in the selection, compensation or the employ ment 

practices with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

V. Assignment of Agreement: The Contractor shall not assign or transfer its interest in this 

Agreement without prior written approval of the County, which shall be attached to the 

original Agreement.  Any such assignment, if approved, is subject to such conditions and 

provisions, as the County may deem necessary.  No approval by the County of any 

assignment or transfer of interest shall be deemed to create any obligation of the county 

in addition to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement consideration. 

8 



 

W. Funds Authorized and Available: The County certifies that at the time of signing this 

Agree ment, sufficient funds are authorized and available, or are anticipated to be 

available, for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within the County's current 

appropri ation or limitation. 

X. Recovery of Overpayments: If billings under this Agreement, or under any Agreement 

between the Contractor and the County, result in payments to the Contractor for which 

the Contractor is not entitled under the terms of such Agreement, the County, after 

giving written notification to the Contractor, may withhold from payments due to the 

Contractor under this Agreement such amounts, over such periods of time, as are 

necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

Y. Criminal History Records Checks: Contractor agrees to authorize a review of state and 

federal records by Polk County as a qualified entity, to determine the nature of any 

criminal activity the Contractor may have been involved in accordance with OAR 

943-007-001 for purposes described in OAR 407-007-0400. No work will be assigned to 

Contractor until a Criminal History Check is completed and verified by the qualified 

entity.  Contractor shall notify Polk County within five days of being arrested, charged, or 

convicted of any crime. 

SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

A. Payment of Subcontractors, Industrial Accident Fund Contributions, Liens and 

Withholding Taxes: 

i. Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to such 

contractor labor or material for the prosecution of the work provided for in this 

contract. 

ii. Contractor shall pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 

from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

iii. Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the 

state, county, school district, municipality, Municipal Corporation or subdivisions 

thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

iv. Contractor shall pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from 

employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

B. Payment of Claims by County: If Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt 

payment of any claim for labor or services furnished to the contractor or a subcontractor 

by any person in connection with the public contract as such claim becomes due, the 

9 



 

proper officer or officers representing Polk County may pay such claim to the person 

furnishing the labor or services and charge the amount of payment against funds due or 

to become due the Contractor by reason of this contract.  Payment of a claim in this 

manner shall not relieve the contractor or contractor’s surety from obligation with 

respect to any unpaid claims. 

C. Hours of Labor: All laborers providing contract services shall be paid at least time and a 

half for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals 

under these contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 USC 

section 201 to 209 from receiving overtime. 

D. Payment for Medical Care: Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any 

person, co-partnership, association or corporation, furnishing medical, surgical and 

hospital care or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the 

employees for such Contractor, of all sums which the Contractor agrees to pay for such 

services and all moneys and sums which the contractor collected or deducted from the 

wages of employees pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of 

providing or paying such service. 

E. Providing Workers’ Compensation Insurance: All employers working under this contract 

are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

F. Health Care Benefits for Employees: The Contractor shall provide health care benefits to 

all employees who are performing services previously performed by public employees if 

the conditions specified in ORS 653.767 require such payment.  Benefits must equal or 

exceed those benefits specified in ORS 279.315(3).  This clause does not apply to 

contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

G. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: Contractor agrees that Contractor will 

comply and does comply with all relevant provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

10 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both parties agree to and accept all terms and conditions of this 

Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

● Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement 

● Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

 

CONTRACTOR 

 

 

 

Signature 

 
 
 
 

 
Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 

 

 

 

Chair 

Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 

 
Date 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

Morgan Smith 

County Counsel 

 
 
 

 
Date 
 

 

 

11 

May 28, 2025



 

EXHIBIT A:  

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

Between 

POLK COUNTY  and  IRIS TELEHEALTH MEDICAL GROUP, PA 

1. DEFINITIONS:  

Except as otherwise defined in this Business Associate Agreement (BA Agreement), any and 

all italicized terms herein shall have the same definition as those in the HIPAA Privacy Rule.1 

Henceforth, Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, shall be referred to as 

“COUNTY” and IRIS TELEHEALTH MEDICAL GROUP, PA shall be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

2. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health Information other than as 

permitted or required by this BA Agreement or as permitted or required by law. 

B. CONTRACTOR agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of 

Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is 

known to CONTRACTOR of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by 

CONTRACTOR in violation of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

D. CONTRACTOR agrees to report to the COUNTY any use or disclosure of the Protected 

Health Information not provided for by this BA Agreement of which it becomes aware. 

E. CONTRACTOR agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it 

provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by, 

CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY agrees to the same restrictions and conditions 

that apply through this BA Agreement to CONTRACTOR with respect to such 

information. 

F. In the event that it is found to be applicable, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide access, at 

the request of the COUNTY, and in the time and manner necessary for reasonable 

compliance, to Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set to the COUNTY 

1 The use and disclosure of protected health information in performance of Business Associate functions is 
governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
and disclosure of protected health information is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
laws. 

12 



 

or, as directed by the COUNTY, to an Individual in order to meet the requirements under 

45 CFR § 164.524. 

G. In the event that it is found to be applicable, CONTRACTOR agrees to make any 

amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set that the 

COUNTY directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.526 at the request of 

CONTRACTOR, or an Individual, and in the time and manner necessary for reasonable 

compliance. 

H. CONTRACTOR agrees to make internal practices, books, and records, including policies 

and procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the use and disclosure of 

Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on 

behalf of the COUNTY available to the COUNTY or to the Secretary of the Department of 

Health and Human Services, in a time and manner agreed between the COUNTY and 

CONTRACTOR or designated by the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining 

the COUNTY’S compliance with the Privacy Rule. 

I. CONTRACTOR agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information and 

information related to such disclosures as would be required for the COUNTY to respond 

to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health 

Information in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

J. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide to the COUNTY or an Individual, in the time and manner 

necessary for reasonable compliance, information collected in accordance with section 

2.A of this BA Agreement, to permit the COUNTY to respond to a request by an 

Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in 

accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in this 

BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Information to perform 

certain health plan functions for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the Polk County 

Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure would not violate 

the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary policies and procedures 

of the COUNTY. 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

A. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any limitation(s) in the Notice of Privacy 

Practices of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.520, to the extent that such 

limitation may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

13 



 

B. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by 

Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, to the extent that such 

changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

C. The COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR of any restriction to the use or disclosure of 

Protected Health Information that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 

§ 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 

disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

5. PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 

use or disclose Protected Health Information in any manner that would not be permissible 

under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or disclosure is permitted 

under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

6. TERM AND TERMINATION: 

A. Term. This BA Agreement shall be effective as of July 30, 2025, and shall terminate when 

all of the Protected Health Information provided by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR, or 

created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is destroyed or returned 

to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected Health Information, 

protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination 

provisions in this Section. 

B. Termination for Cause. Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge of a material breach by 

CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

i. Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 

intervention of the COUNTY within the timeline specified in Section III (P) of the Polk 

County Agreement; or 

ii. Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and the 

Polk County Agreement within the timeline specified in Section III of the Polk County 

Agreement. At the direction of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may terminate 

this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permitted in Section III of the 

Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the breach upon conclusion of 

the technical assistance and corrective action described in paragraph (i.) of this 

section; or 

iii. If neither termination nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the violation to 

the Secretary. 

 

14 



 

C. Effect of Termination. 

i. Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this section, upon termination of this BA 

Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected Health 

Information received from the COUNTY, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on 

behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected Health Information that 

is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall 

retain no copies of the Protected Health Information. 

ii. In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 

Protected Health Information is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 

COUNTY written notification of the conditions that make return or destruction 

infeasible. Upon written acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 

destruction of Protected Health Information is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall extend 

the protections of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit 

further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health Information to those purposed 

that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as CONTRACTOR maintains 

such Protected Health Information. 

7. MISCELLANEOUS: 

A. Regulatory References. References in this BA Agreement to the Privacy Rule or any 

section of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or section as in effect or as amended. 

B. Amendment. The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take such action as is necessary to 

amend this BA Agreement from time to time as is necessary for the COUNTY to comply 

with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

C. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of CONTRACTOR under Section 6.C of this 

BA Agreement shall survive the termination of this BA Agreement. 

D. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 

COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between the 

provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy Rule, the 

Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other federal law is 

more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or federal law shall 

control. 

 

 

15 



 

8. SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

A. Background Requirement: The COUNTY, in accordance with § 164.306 and § 164.308 (b), 

may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 

Protected Health Information on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 

satisfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 

appropriately safeguard the information. The COUNTY must document the satisfactory 

assurances through a written contract or other arrangement with the CONTRACTOR. 

B. Part I. Security Assurances: The CONTRACTOR will Implement administrative, physical, 

and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, 

integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health information that it creates, 

receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the COUNTY as required by the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the requirements of Health 

Insurance Reform, the Security Standards (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

i. Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 

information, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect 

it. 

ii. Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

iii. Authorize termination of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 

that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

C. Part II. Other arrangements: When the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR are both 

governmental entities, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

i. It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that contains 

terms that accomplish the objectives of Part I.; or 

ii. Other law (including regulations adopted by the COUNTY or the CONTRACTOR) 

contains requirements applicable to the CONTRACTOR that accomplish the 

objectives of Part I. 

D. If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a function or activity on behalf of the 

COUNTY or to provide a service described in the definition of CONTRACTOR as specified 

in § 160.103 of the regulation to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 

CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 

Information on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 

without meeting the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will attempt in good 

16 



 

faith to obtain satisfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will document the 

attempt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if not obtained.

17 



 

EXHIBIT B: 

 STATEMENT OF WORK 

Iris Telehealth agrees to provide tele-psychiatric treatment for persons identified and 

scheduled by Polk County Behavioral Health (PCBH). Client scheduling during the agreed upon 

hours of service will occur in thirty (30) minute sessions for returning and known clients, and 

ninety (90) minute sessions for new PCBH clients and psychiatric evaluations. Tele-psychiatric 

treatment will be performed by a licensed Psychiatrist or Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse 

Practitioner, herein referred to as Prescriber.  Prescribers shall provide required documentation 

of services in the Polk County Behavioral Health EHR system. Documentation shall be 

completed, signed, and submitted within 3 business days of service encounter.  

Iris Telehealth will bill PCBH for services for a nurse practitioner, according to actual hours 

worked per week based on a mutually agreed upon schedule. PCBH will not be responsible for 

PTO, vacations, or other such non-billable hours.  The Contractor will be paid for services 

provided by an advanced practice Nurse Practitioner depending on credentials per the rate 

table below: 

Service 2025 Outpatient Services Rate* 

Adult MD $212 - $248 

Child MD $235 - $270 

Nurse Practitioner $135 - $170 

LCSW - Adult $68 - $82 

LCSW - Child/Family $76 - $87 

LPC $63 - $77 

 

The specific rate for each practitioner will be within the ranges above depending on the 

qualifications and duties intended for each practitioner and shall be communicated to the PCBH 

prior to the practitioner beginning work under this agreement. 

 

*For a multi-lingual clinician and/or for “specialty providers”, an additional charge of $9.00 per 

hour will be added to the rate. For supervision, an additional charge of $10-$20 per hour will be 

added to the rate. 

 

18 



 

The Contractor will not revise a given Prescriber’s rate during their first year of services to the 

County. Thereafter, any recurring charges for said Prescriber are subject to a 3.2% increase 

annually. 
 

Prescriber Start Date Weekly Hours Billable Rate* 

Dale LaChance 6/4/21 40 $148 per hour 

Cheryl Ann Hess 11/1/21 32 $147 per hour 

Chad Sawyer 4/7/16 28 $149 per hour 

*Billable Rate effective on January 1, 2025 or upon start of services for new clinician. 

The Contractor will submit a monthly invoice specifying the dates and hours when services 

were rendered. Any additional compensation would be made by a mutual agreement between 

PCBH and the Contractor. 

With an understanding that continuity of care for PCBH clients and the Iris Telehealth 

Prescribers under this agreement, it is essential that Iris telehealth requires all Prescribers to 

provide a minimum of ninety (90) days notice to PCBH prior to leaving Iris Telehealth as a 

provider. Similarly, if an Iris Telehealth Prescriber elects to reduce their hours and/or their 

workload such that PCBH clients will need to transition to new providers, the Prescriber shall 

also provide ninety (90) days notice prior to that reduction. This allows PCBH to transition 

clients to new providers. 

Conversely, PCBH will not terminate or reduce hours of an Iris Telehealth Prescriber without 90 

days prior notice to Iris and the provider. Notwithstanding this notice requirement, no such 

notice shall be required in the event the provider has engaged in gross misconduct.  

Determinations of gross misconduct shall be in the sole discretion of PCBH.  

19 



 
CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 
 

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Rivera Phone Number (Ext): 2550 

Department: Health Services: Behavioral Health Consent Calendar Date: June 04, 2025 
 

Contractor Name: Northwest Human Services 
 

Address: 681 Center Street NE 

City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301 
 

Effective Dates - From: July 01, 2024 Through: June 30, 2025 
 

Contract Amount: $15,247.50 
 

Background: 

Northwest Human Services has agreed to provide Crisis and Informational Hotline services to Polk 
County individuals. 
 

 

Discussion: 

This agreement is a continuation of services Northwest Human Services has been providing Polk 
County individuals in the past fiscal years. Northwest Human Services provides crisis phone 
coverage for Polk County Behavioral Health and acts as the dispatch center for Polk County Mobile 
Crisis Intervention Team outside of regular clinic operating hours. 
 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
contract and the Behavioral Health budget was developed in anticipation of this agreement being in 
place.  
 

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Northwest Human Services. 
 

 
Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
Name: Rosana Warren Rivera E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

Name:  E-mail:  
 



Polk County Contract No. 25-76









































 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO: Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Darren Blackwell 

 

DATE: May 30, 2025 

 

SUBJECT: Vacation of a portion of Hall Rd. 

 

 

Wednesday, June 4, 2025-Consent Calendar 

 

RECOMMENDATION; 
That the Board approves the vacation of a portion of Hall Road near the community of Grand Ronde. 
 

ISSUE: 
Shall the Board of Commissioners vacate a portion of Hall Road near the community of Grand Ronde? 
 

DISCUSSION: 

This right of way created by petition and declared a public road in Commissioner's Journal Volume 

1, Page 201 & 202 on September 4th, 1855. It was the east entrance to Fort Yamhill as well as the 

Grand Ronde Reservation. A citizen request was received by Public Works to vacate a portion of 

Hall Road near the community of Grand Ronde. All landowners adjacent to these rights of way 

have signed a petition to vacate. No other landowners would be affected. A public hearing was not 

necessary per ORS 368.351. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Vacation fees to be collected. 

Recording fees. 

Tax revenue on the land to be vacated. 

 

Enclosures; 

Order 25-08 

Road officials report 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Signed Petitions 

 

 

 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 1 

POLK COUNTY, OREGON 2 

 3 

In the Matter of vacating a portion of Hall             ) 4 

Road near the community of Grand Ronde.           )  5 

See Exhibit “A” and "B".                                        )               6 

 7 

ORDER NO. 25-08 8 

 9 

 WHEREAS, a member of the public has submitted a petition to Public Works requesting 10 

that proceedings be initiated to vacate a portion of Hall Road near the community of Grand 11 

Ronde, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B”; and 12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, this matter does not require a public hearing pursuant to ORS 368.351; and 14 

 15 

WHEREAS, Public Works has recommended that portion of Hall Road near the 16 

community of Grand Ronde, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit 17 

“B” be vacated; and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, it appearing to the board that it is in the best interest of the public to vacate 20 

the said portion of Hall Road near the community of Grand Ronde, more particularly described in 21 

Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B”; and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, all landowners adjacent to these rights of way have signed a petition to 24 

vacate. No other landowners would be affected; and 25 

 26 

WHEREAS, this matter meets the criterion specified in ORS 368.351 for a vacation 27 

without a hearing; and 28 

 29 

WHEREAS, ORS 368.326 to 368.366 specifies the procedure for vacation of County 30 

property; now, therefore, 31 

 32 

33 



THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 1 

 2 

(1) That a portion of Hall Road near the community of Grand Ronde, more particularly 3 

described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” be vacated. 4 

 5 

(2) This order takes effect upon signing. 6 

 7 

Dated: June 4th, 2025 at Dallas, Oregon. 8 

      9 

 10 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 11 

 12 

 13 

     _______________________________ 14 

     Craig Pope, Chair 15 

 16 

 17 

     _______________________________ 18 

     Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 19 

 20 

 21 

_______________________________ 22 

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 23 

 24 

 25 

 26 

Approved as to Form  27 

 28 

______________ 29 

Morgan Smith     30 

County Counsel     31 

 32 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description 
 
 

A strip of land 60 feet wide, 30 feet on either side of the following centerline description, 
lying in the northeast one-quarter of Section 8, and the northwest one-quarter and the 
southwest one-quarter of Section 9, Township 6 South, Range 7 West of the Willamette 
Meridian, Polk County, Oregon. 
 
Said strip of land being a portion of what is now known as Hall Road (CR 6709). Said 
portion of road was originally known as the Dallas to Ocean Pass Road (Old Road No. 
11) created by Commissioner's Journal Volume 1, Page 201 & 202 on Sept. 4, 1855. Said 
portion of road has also been known as Buell's Mill to Job Burden Road (Old Road No. 
22), Yamhill River Bridge to Dougherty's Mill Road (Old Road No. 84), Daugherty 
Change in Dallas to Grand Ronde Road (Old Road No. 139) and being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a 5/8" Iron Rod with a yellow plastic cap marked "L. Macdonald & Assoc., 
LLC" per CS15665, being an angle point on the northeasterly line of that tract of land 
described in Exhibit A of deed document 2024-008312, conveyed to Brad P. Chewning 
and Detonia M. Chewning on November 11, 2024, Polk County deed records. Said angle 
point bears North 14°57'22" East 3053.04 feet, North 23°02'24" East 143.92 feet, South 
56°22'33" East 30.44 feet from the corner common to sections 8, 9, 16, and 17 of said 
Township and Range; Thence North 56°22'33" West 310.89 Feet to a 5/8" iron rod with 
an Aluminum Cap marked "J&R Surveyors LS1608" of unknown origin; Thence South 
89°36'05" West 632.89 feet to a 5/8" iron rod per CS4128; Thence North 69°44'59" West 
123.75 feet to a 5/8" iron rod per CS4128 which marks the northwest corner of that tract 
of land conveyed to Brad P. Chewning and Detonia M. Chewning in B.O.R. 280 Pg. 177, 
on January 11, 1994. Said 5/8" iron rod is also the terminus of this description for the 
purpose of vacating said portion of Hall Road (CR6709). 
 
Also, reserving a ten (10) foot wide public utility easement centered on any utilities that 
may exist within the above described right of way. 
 
This description is based on Polk County Document No. 2024-008312 and Polk County 
Survey CS16904. 
 
It is Polk County's intent to vacate all of Hall Road between the beginning point and 
terminus point of the above description, regardless of where it may lie in relation to said 
description. 
 
 
 



Vacation Area

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde
Chewning

Gate

CTGR Access Road

600

Exhibit B

Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, ©
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community,
Sources: Esri, Maxar, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N
Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen,
Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap, and the GIS user

Taxlots

400 Scale

200 Scale

4/16/2025, 4:20:31 PM
0 500 1,000250 ft

0 150 30075 m

1:5,642

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Oregon State Parks, State of Oregon GEO, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS | NRCS, USDA, Polk County | Polk County Assesor,


	25-73.pdf
	PSA - DR. CASTILLO, CAROLINE - 2025 (1)
	CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
	AGREEMENT 
	SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
	SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 
	SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
	SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

	PSA - DR. CASTILLO, CAROLINE - 2025 (2)
	SIGNATURE PAGE 

	PSA - DR. CASTILLO, CAROLINE - 2025 (1)
	EXHIBIT A:  
	BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
	EXHIBIT B: 
	 STATEMENT OF WORK 


	25-75.pdf
	OSA - IRIS TELEHEALTH - 25_26 - REDLINED
	CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
	AGREEMENT 
	SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
	SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 
	SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
	SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

	OSA - IRIS TELEHEALTH - sig
	OSA - IRIS TELEHEALTH - 25_26 - REDLINED
	EXHIBIT A:  
	BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
	EXHIBIT B: 
	 STATEMENT OF WORK 



	Caroline Castillo MD: 
	Date: 5/13/2025


